October 29, 2004

Mr. Thomas Coutu

Site Vice President

Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant
Nuclear Management Company, LLC
N490 Hwy 42

Kewaunee, WI 54216-9511

SUBJECT: KEWAUNEE NUCLEAR POWER PLANT
NRC INTEGRATED INSPECTION REPORT 05000305/2004007

Dear Mr. Coutu:

On September 30, 2004, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an
inspection at your Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant. The enclosed integrated inspection report
documents the inspection findings which were discussed on September 29, 2004, with you and
other members of your staff.

The inspection examined activities conducted under your license as they relate to safety and
compliance with the Commission’s rules and regulations and with the conditions of your license.
The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and interviewed
personnel.

Based on the results of this inspection, there were four NRC-identified and one self-revealed
finding of very low safety significance (Green). These findings were determined to involve
violations of NRC requirements. However, because these violations were of very low safety
significance, non-willful and non-repetitive, and because the violations were entered in your
corrective program, the NRC is treating these issues as Non-Cited Violations, in accordance
with Section VI.A.1 of the NRC’s Enforcement Policy.

If you contest the subject or severity of a Non-Cited Violation, you should provide a response
within 30 days of the date of this inspection report, with the basis for your denial, to the

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington,

DC 20555-0001; with copies to the Regional Administrator, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Region lll, 2443 Warrenville Road, Suite 210, Lisle, IL 60532-4352; the Director,
Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001;
and the NRC Resident Inspector Office at the Kewaunee facility.
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In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter
and its enclosure will be available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public
Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of NRC's
document system (ADAMS). ADAMS is accessible from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html (the Public Electronic Reading Room).

Sincerely,

/RA/

Thomas J. Kozak, Team Leader
Technical Support Section
Division of Reactor Projects

Docket No. 50-305
License No. DPR-43

Enclosure: Inspection Report 05000305/2004007
w/Attachment: Supplemental Information

cc w/encl: J. Cowan, Executive Vice President,

Chief Nuclear Officer

Plant Manager

Manager, Regulatory Affairs

J. Rogoff, Vice President, Counsel & Secretary

D. Molzahn, Nuclear Asset Manager,
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

L. Weyers, Chairman, President and CEO,
Wisconsin Public Service Corporation

D. Zellner, Chairman, Town of Carlton

J. Kitsembel, Public Service Commission of Wisconsin
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

IR 05000305/2004007; 07/01/2004 - 09/30/2004; Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant; Operability
Determinations, Post Maintenance Testing, Event Followup, and Other Activities.

This report covers a 3-month period of baseline resident inspection and announced baseline
inspections of licensed operator requalification, maintenance effectiveness, emergency
preparedness and the radiation protection program. The inspections were conducted by the
resident and Region lll inspectors. The inspectors also completed Temporary Instruction
2515/159, “Review of Generic Letter (GL) 89-13: Service Water System Problems Affecting
Safety-Related Equipment.” The inspections identified four NRC-identified Green findings
associated with four non-cited violations and one self-revealed Green finding associated with
one non-cited violation. The significance of most findings is indicated by their color (Green,
White, Yellow, Red) using Inspection Manual Chapter 0609, “Significance Determination
Process.” Findings for which the Significance Determination Process does not apply may be
Green or be assigned a severity level after NRC management review. The NRC’s program for
overseeing the safe operation of commercial nuclear power reactors is described in
NUREG-1649, “Reactor Oversight Process,” Revision 3, dated July 2000.

A. Inspector-ldentified and Self-Revealed Findings

Cornerstone: Mitigating Systems

. Green. A finding of very low safety significance was identified by the inspectors
for a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion XVI, “Corrective Actions.”
During a review of the licensee’s list of safety-related equipment designated as
degraded or nonconforming, the inspectors identified that the licensee failed to
promptly correct three conditions adverse to quality. These conditions adverse
to quality included noncompliance of both Residual Heat Removal pump seal
coolers with system design requirements, which was previously identified by
NRC inspectors in November 2002, but not promptly corrected by the licensee;
and two sections of safety-related piping, one associated with the “B” Emergency
Diesel Generator fuel oil supply and the other associated with the Component
Cooling Water piping from the “B” Residual Heat Removal pump seal cooler and
stuffing box, that were identified by the licensee in September and April 2003,
respectively, as exceeding Updated Safety Analysis Report stress criteria but not
promptly corrected by the licensee. The primary cause of this finding was
related to the cross-cutting area of problem identification and resolution. The
licensee failed to prioritize and promptly correct these conditions adverse to
quality in accordance with the guidelines in the corrective action program. Once
these conditions were identified, the licensee restored the following conditions to
operable: the ‘A’ RHR Pump Seal Cooler; the CCW piping expansion loop from
the ‘B’ RHR pump seal cooler; and the fuel oil supply piping to the ‘B’ EDG. The
licensee planned to restore the ‘B’ RHR Pump Seal Cooler during the upcoming
Fall 2004 Refueling Outage.
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This issue was more than minor because it affected the Mitigating System
cornerstone attribute of design control for initial design and plant modifications
and affected the associated cornerstone objective to ensure the availability,
reliability and capability of systems that respond to initiating events to prevent
undesirable consequences. The finding was of very low safety significance
because it was not a design or qualification deficiency that has been confirmed
to result in a loss of function per Generic Letter 91-18. This issue was a Non-
Cited Violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion XVI, “Corrective
Actions.” (Section 1R15.1)

Green. A finding of very low safety significance was self-revealed during the
licensee’s review of high oil particulate in the Turbine Driven Auxiliary Feedwater
Pump Turbine, which resulted in a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B,
Criterion V, "Instructions, Procedures, and Drawings." The licensee determined
that high oil particulate in the Turbine Driven Auxiliary Feedwater Pump Turbine
was caused by damage to the journal bearing. Maintenance procedures did not
specify appropriate acceptance criteria for oil sampling, did not specify an
appropriate inspection frequency and criteria for the turbine bearings and
bearing cavities, and allowed the reuse of bearings in different locations during
maintenance of the Turbine, which were not acceptable maintenance practices.
The reuse of the upper inboard bearing in a different location contributed to the
journal bearing damage. The licensee took immediate remedial corrective
actions to replace the bearings, clean the housing and return the pump to
service. In addition, the licensee revised its maintenance procedures to include
appropriate instructions for turbine and pump maintenance activities.

This self-revealed finding was more than minor because, if left uncorrected, the
issue would have become a more significant safety concern. In addition, it
affected the Mitigating Systems attributes of equipment performance reliability
and the Mitigating Systems cornerstone objective of ensuring the reliability of
systems. The finding was of very low safety significance because it was not a
design or qualification deficiency that has been confirmed to result in a loss of
function per Generic Letter 91-18. This issue was a Non-Cited Violation of

10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions, Procedures, And
Drawings.” (Section 40A3.1)

Green. A finding of very low safety significance was identified by the inspectors
for a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions,
Procedures, And Drawings.” This finding was associated with the licensee’s
failure to implement an appropriate inspection and cleaning procedure containing
quantitative or qualitative acceptance criteria for the 1A RHR pump pit Fan Coil
Unit to ensure that cleaning was satisfactorily accomplished. Following
discovery, the licensee entered the issue into its corrective action program and
conducted an immediate operability assessment that determined the involved fan
coil units were operable.

This issue was more than minor because it involved the procedure quality
attribute of the Mitigating Systems cornerstone and affected the cornerstone
objective of ensuring the availability, reliability, and capability of systems that
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respond to initiating events to prevent undesirable consequences. The finding
was of very low safety significance because it was not a design or qualification
deficiency that has been confirmed to result in a loss of function per Generic
Letter 91-18. This issue was a Non-Cited Violation of 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions, Procedures, And Drawings.”

(Section 40A5.1b.1)

Green. A finding of very low safety significance was identified by the inspectors
for a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion lll, "Design Control."
This finding was associated with the licensee’s failure to perform a design
verification to demonstrate that the diesel generator lube oil cooler service water
outlet valve actuators, installed under Design Change 3357, would not result in a
failure of the valve stems under conditions in which the valve ball froze nor had
the licensee provided sufficient justification to show that valve ball freezing was
not credible. Following discovery, the licensee entered the issue into its
corrective action program and performed an operability assessment which
provided additional justification to demonstrate that the stem failure was
considered not credible.

This issue was more than minor because it involved the design control attribute
of the Mitigating Systems cornerstone and affected the cornerstone objective of
ensuring the availability, reliability, and capability of systems that respond to
initiating events to prevent undesirable consequences. The finding was of very
low safety significance because it was not a design or qualification deficiency
that has been confirmed to result in a loss of function per Generic Letter 91-18.
This issue was a Non-Cited Violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B,

Criterion lll, "Design Control." (Section 40A5.1b.2)

Cornerstone: Barrier Integrity

Green. A finding of very low safety significance was identified by the inspectors
for a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions,
Procedures, And Drawings.” The licensee conducted corrective maintenance to
fix a deficient condition on the containment personnel hatch seal, a safety-
related component, under the ‘toolpouch maintenance’ process rather than with
the use of a work request or a work order, contrary to procedural requirements.
The primary cause of this finding was related to the cross-cutting area of human
performance. Licensee personnel failed to appropriately implement licensee
procedures for conducting work on safety-related components. Once this was
identified, the licensee performed an extent of condition evaluation on the work
control process and identified that, since July 2002, approximately 14 percent of
the work performed under ‘toolpouch maintenance’ had been performed on
safety-related components without a work order. The licensee also implemented
a number of corrective actions to ensure work on safety-related equipment is
conducted according to procedural requirements.
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This issue was more than minor because it affected the Barrier Integrity
Cornerstone attribute of reactor containment integrity, and, if left uncorrected,
the finding could become a more significant safety concern. The finding was of
very low safety significance because it did not represent an actual open pathway
in the physical integrity of the reactor containment and none of the work
conducted on safety-related equipment without a work order resulted in an
operability concern. This issue was a Non-Cited Violation of 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix B, Criterion V, “Instructions, Procedures, And Drawings.”

(Section 1R19.1)

Licensee-ldentified Violation

Violations of very low safety significance, which were identified by the licensee have
been reviewed by the inspectors. Corrective actions taken or planned by the licensee
have been entered into the licensee’s corrective action program. These violations and
the licensee”s corrective action tracking numbers are listed in Section 40A7 of this
report.
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REPORT DETAILS

Summary of Plant Status

The plant operated at or near full power for most of the inspection period except for brief
periods when operators reduced power to facilitate routine tests. In addition, operators reduced
reactor power to 99 percent from August 3 through August 12, 2004, to address apparent
steam flow anomalies.
1. REACTOR SAFETY

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity

1R04 Equipment Alignment

A Partial System Walkdowns (71111.04Q)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed partial walkdowns of the following two systems, completing
two inspection procedure samples, to verify that the systems were correctly aligned to
perform their design function:

C Emergency Diesel Generator (EDG) Train ‘B’ and the associated Train ‘B’
4160-Volt Distribution System, while the opposite EDG Train was out of service;
and

C EDG Train ‘A’ and the associated Train ‘A’ 4160-Volt Distribution System, while

the opposite EDG Train was out of service.

In preparation for the walkdowns, the inspectors reviewed the system lineup checklists,
normal operating procedures, abnormal and emergency operating procedures, and
system drawings to verify the correct system lineup. During the walkdowns, the
inspectors also examined valve positions and electrical power availability to verify that
valve and electrical breaker positions were consistent and in accordance with the
licensee’s procedures and desigh documentation. The inspectors also observed the
material condition of the equipment. Documents reviewed during this inspection are
listed in the Attachment.

b. Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

2 Semiannual Walkdown (71111.04S)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors completely walked down the auxiliary feedwater (AFW) system,
completing one inspection procedure sample. At the time of the inspection, the AFW
system was aligned for emergency standby readiness. The inspection included a review
of licensee procedures for normal, abnormal and emergency system operations.
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1R05

Other documents reviewed included design drawings, piping & instrument drawings, the
degraded equipment log, operations night orders, and system lineup checklists.

The inspectors reviewed open and recently closed maintenance work requests for the
AFW system to assess whether the identified work had the potential to adversely affect
system operability. In addition, the inspectors reviewed in-process engineering design
change requests associated with the AFW system and discussed the current status with
licensee personnel.

Finally, the inspectors’ walkdown of the AFW system included all accessible system
piping and valving associated with all three AFW pumps, electrical power supplies,
steam supply for the turbine driven AFW pump, local and dedicated control panel
switches and controls, and monitoring and alarm systems. The inspectors verified that
support systems and devices were functional and properly aligned to perform the
respective safety functions. During the walkdown, the inspectors reviewed correct valve
and switch positions; appropriate equipment labeling; availability of electrical power;
availability of support systems; and verification of outstanding corrective work orders to
ensure system or component functions were not adversely impacted.

Findings

No findings of significance were identified.

Fire Protection (71111.05Q)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed fire protection walkdowns of the following six plant areas,
completing six inspection procedure samples:

Fire Zone TU-22, Turbine Building-Operating Floor and Mezzanine;

Fire Zone AX-23B, Auxiliary Building;

Fire Zone AX-24, Fuel Handling Rooms, All Elevations;

Fire Zone AX-33, Condensate and Makeup Water Tank Rooms;

Fire Zone TU-90 and TU-91, EDG 1-A and Diesel Generator 1-A Day Tank
Room; and

. Fire Zone TU-95, Dedicated Shutdown Panel and Bus 51 and 52 Room.

During the walkdowns, the inspectors focused on the availability, accessibility, and
condition of fire fighting equipment; the control of transient combustibles and ignition
sources; and the materiel condition of installed fire barriers. The inspectors selected fire
areas for inspection based on the overall contribution to internal fire risk, and the
potential to impact equipment that could initiate a plant transient. The inspectors
verified that fire response equipment was in the designated location and available for
immediate use without obstruction; that fire detectors and sprinklers were unobstructed;
that transient material loading was within the analyzed limits; and that passive features
such as fire doors, dampers, and penetration seals were in satisfactory condition. The
inspectors verified that minor issues identified during the inspection were entered into
the licensee’s corrective action program. Documents reviewed during this inspection
are listed in the Attachment.
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1R06

1R11

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Flood Protection Measures (71111.06)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed an internal flooding inspection in the EDG 1-A room,
completing one inspection procedure sample. The inspectors evaluated internal
flooding hazards in the room and evaluated flood protection features, such as room
doors, door gaps, and room drains, to determine if the features were in satisfactory
physical condition, unobstructed, and capable of providing an adequate flood barrier.
The inspectors also reviewed design basis documents and risk analyses to determine
plant vulnerabilities and protective features relating to potential flooding sources for this
room. Documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment to this
report.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Licensed Operator Requalification (71111.11)

Facility Operating History

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the plant’s operating history from January 2003 through
June 2004 to assess whether the Licensed Operator Requalification Training (LORT)
program had identified and addressed operator performance deficiencies at the plant.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Licensee Requalification Examinations

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed a biennial inspection of the licensee’s LORT program. The
inspectors reviewed the annual requalification operating test and biennial written
examination material to evaluate general quality, construction, and difficulty level. The
operating examination material reviewed consisted of seven operating tests, each
containing two dynamic simulator scenarios and five job performance measures (JPMs).
The biennial written examinations reviewed consisted of two senior reactor operator
(SRO) and two reactor operator (RO) examinations. The inspectors reviewed the
methodology for developing the examinations, including the LORT program 2-year
sample plan, probabilistic risk assessment insights, previously identified operator
performance deficiencies, and plant modifications. The inspectors also reviewed the
licensee’s program and assessed the level of examination material duplication during
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the current year annual examinations as compared to the previous year’s annual
examinations.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Licensee Administration of Requalification Examinations

Inspection Scope

The inspectors observed the administration of the requalification operating test to
assess the licensee’s effectiveness in conducting the test and to assess the facility
evaluators’ ability to determine adequate performance using objective, measurable
performance standards. The inspectors evaluated the performance of one shift crew
in parallel with the facility evaluators during two dynamic simulator scenarios. In
addition, the inspectors observed licensee evaluators administer several JPMs to
various licensed crew members. The inspectors observed the training staff personnel
administer the operating test, including pre-examination briefings, observations of
operator performance, and individual and crew evaluations after dynamic scenarios.
The inspectors evaluated the ability of the simulator to support the examinations.

A specific evaluation of simulator performance was conducted and documented
under Section 1R11.8, “Conformance With Simulator Requirements Specified in

10 CFR 55.46,” of this report. The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s overall
examination security program.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Examination Security

Inspection Scope

The inspectors observed and reviewed the licensee’s overall licensed operator
requalification examination security program related to examination physical security
(e.g., access restrictions and simulator considerations) and integrity (e.g., predictability
and bias). The inspectors also reviewed the facility licensee’s examination security
procedure, and the implementation of security and integrity measures (e.g., security
agreements, sampling criteria, bank use, and test item repetition) throughout the
examination process.

Findings

No findings of significance were identified.
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Licensee Training Feedback System

Inspection Scope

The inspectors assessed the methods and effectiveness of the licensee’s processes
for revising and maintaining its LORT program up to date, including the use of feedback
from plant events and industry experience information. The inspectors reviewed the
licensee’s quality assurance oversight activities, including licensee training department
self-assessment reports. The inspectors evaluated the licensee’s ability to assess the
effectiveness of its LORT program and its ability to implement appropriate corrective
actions.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Licensee Remedial Training Program

Inspection Scope

The inspectors assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the remedial training
conducted since the previous annual requalification examinations and the training
planned for the current examination cycle to ensure that they addressed weaknesses in
licensed operator or crew performance identified during training and plant operations.
The inspectors reviewed remedial training procedures and individual remedial training
plans.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Conformance With Operator License Conditions

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the facility and individual operator licensees' conformance with
the requirements of 10 CFR Part 55. The inspectors reviewed the facility licensee’s
program for maintaining active operator licenses and to assess compliance with

10 CFR 55.53 (e) and (f). The inspectors reviewed the procedural guidance and the
process for tracking on-shift hours for licensed operators and which control room
positions were granted credit for maintaining active operator licenses. In addition, the
inspectors reviewed the facility licensee’s LORT program to assess compliance with the
requalification program requirements as described by 10 CFR 55.59 (c).

Findings

No findings of significance were identified.
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Conformance With Simulator Requirements Specified in 10 CFR 55.46

Inspection Scope

The inspectors assessed the adequacy of the licensee’s simulation facility (simulator) for
use in operator licensing examinations and for satisfying experience requirements as
prescribed in 10 CFR 55.46, “Simulation Facilities.” The inspectors also reviewed a
sample of simulator performance test records (i.e., transient tests, scenario test and
discrepancy resolution validation test), simulator discrepancy and modification records,
and the process for ensuring continued assurance of simulator fidelity in accordance
with 10 CFR 55.46. The inspectors reviewed and evaluated the discrepancy process to
ensure that simulator fidelity was maintained. Open simulator discrepancies were
reviewed for importance relative to the impact on 10 CFR 55.45 and 55.59 operator
actions as well as on nuclear and thermal hydraulic operating characteristics. The
inspectors interviewed members of the licensee’s simulator staff regarding the
configuration control process and completed the NRC Inspection Procedure 71111.11,
Appendix C, checklist to evaluate whether the licensee’s plant-referenced simulator
operated adequately as required by 10 CFR 55.46 (c) and (d).

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Annual Operating Test Results

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the pass/fail results of individual written tests administered in
2003, and the operating and simulator tests (required to be given per 10 CFR
55.59(a)(2)) administered by the licensee during calender year 2004. Calendar year
2004 was the first year of the current 2-year training program; therefore, no biennial
comprehensive written examination was administered. This represents one inspection
procedure sample. The overall written examination and operating test results were
compared with the significance determination process in accordance with NRC Manual
Chapter 0609, Appendix I, “Operator Requalification Human Performance Significance
Determination Process.”

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Resident Inspector Quarterly Observation of Licensed Operator Requalification

Inspection Scope

The inspectors observed licensee training personnel evaluate an operating crew during
an accident scenario and subsequently observed the operating crew critique their
performance. The inspectors observed the crew and verified the following attributes of
crew performance: communications, alarm response, emergency operating procedure
usage, component operations and emergency plan classifications. The inspectors
reviewed the scenario for operational validity and risk significance. The inspectors
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1R12

discussed scenario observations and crew evaluations with the licensee trainers. In
addition, the inspectors reviewed the licensees baseline fidelity study to ensure that
differences between the simulator and actual control room board configuration were
maintained as close as possible. This constitutes one quarterly inspection procedure
sample. Documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the Attachment.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Maintenance Effectiveness (71111.12)

Maintenance Effectiveness Periodic Evaluation (71111.12B)

Inspection Scope

To evaluate the effectiveness of the licensee’s (a)(1) and (a)(2) activities within the
Maintenance Rule (10 CFR 50.65), the inspectors examined a number of Kewaunee
(a)(1) Action Plans, Functional Failures Evaluations, Apparent Cause Evaluations
(ACEs), Corrective Action Process (CAPs) Evaluations, and maintenance rule program
documents. The inspectors examined the periodic evaluation reports completed for the
time periods of January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2002, and January 1, 2003
through December 31, 2003. The inspectors reviewed these documents to verify that
the threshold for identification of problems was at an appropriate level and the
associated corrective actions were appropriate. The inspectors focused the inspection
on the following four systems, completing four biennial inspection procedure samples:

. Component Cooling Water;

. Emergency Diesel Generator;

. Residual Heat Removal; and

. Auxiliary Feedwater.

The inspectors verified that the periodic evaluation was completed within the time
restraints defined in 10 CFR 50.65 (i.e., once per refueling cycle, not to exceed 2 years).
The inspectors also ensured that the licensee reviewed its goals, monitored Structures,
Systems, and Components (SSCs) performance, reviewed industry operating
experience, and made appropriate adjustments to the maintenance rule program as a
result of the above activities.

The inspectors verified that the licensee balanced reliability and unavailability during the
previous refueling cycle, including a review of safety significant SSCs.

The inspectors verified that (a)(1) goals were met, that corrective action was appropriate
to correct the defective condition, including the use of industry operating experience,
and that (a)(1) activities and related goals were adjusted as needed.

The inspector verified that the licensee had established (a)(2) performance criteria,
examined any SSCs that failed to meet their performance criteria, and reviewed any
SSCs that were subject to repeated maintenance preventable functional failures,
including a verification that failed SSCs were considered for (a)(1).
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1R13

In addition, the inspectors reviewed maintenance rule self-assessments that addressed
the maintenance rule program implementation.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Additional Evaluations Reviewed (71111.12Q)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s implementation of the Maintenance Rule
(10 CFR 50.65) for the systems listed below, completing three inspection procedure
samples:

. System 02 - Service Water;
. System 25 - Control Room Air Conditioning; and
. System 38 - Direct Current Supply and Distribution.

The inspectors verified that the licensee identified, entered, and scoped component and
equipment failures within the maintenance rule requirements. The inspectors also
verified that the systems and equipment were properly categorized and classified as
“(@)(1)” or “(@)(2)” in accordance with 10 CFR 50.65. The inspectors reviewed a sample
of station logs, maintenance work orders, maintenance rule evaluations, unavailability
records, and a sample of condition reports to verify that the licensee identified issues
related to the maintenance rule at an appropriate threshold and that corrective actions
were appropriate. Additionally, the inspectors reviewed the licensee’s performance
criteria to verify that the criteria adequately monitored equipment performance.
Documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the Attachment.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Maintenance Risk Assessment and Emergent Work Evaluation (71111.13)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s evaluation and assessment of plant risk,
scheduling, and configuration control during the following planned and emergent work
activities, completing four inspection procedure samples:

Safety Monitor Risk Assessment for July 6 through 9, 2004;

Safety Monitor Risk Assessment for July 26 through 30, 2004;
Safety Monitor Risk Assessment for August 9 through 13, 2004; and
Safety Monitor Risk Assessment for August 23 through 27, 2004.

In particular, the inspectors evaluated the licensee’s planning and management of
maintenance and verified that shutdown and on-line risk was acceptable and monitored
in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 50.65(a)(4). Additionally, the inspectors
compared the assessed risk configuration against the actual plant conditions and any
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1R14

in-progress evolutions or external events to verify that the assessment was accurate,
complete, and appropriate. The inspectors also reviewed licensee actions to address
increased shutdown and on-line risk during these periods to verify that the actions were
in accordance with approved administrative procedures. Documents reviewed during
this inspection are listed in the Attachment.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Personnel Performance During Non-Routine Plant Evolutions (71111.14)

Operator Response to Increasing ‘A’ Reactor Coolant Pump Motor Lower Bearing
Temperature Indication

Inspection Scope

On July 19, 2004, the inspectors observed the licensee’s response to the Reactor
Coolant Pump ‘A’ motor lower radial bearing temperature increase. The inspectors
observed operator procedure use and adherence, communications, control of
equipment, and response to the alarm. In addition, the inspectors observed the
licensee’s overall response to the increased temperature indication, including planning
for the licensee’s troubleshooting process. This observation constituted one inspection
procedure sample.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Operator Response to Anomalous Increase in Steam Flow from the Steam Generators

Inspection Scope

On August 3, 2004, the inspectors observed the operators decrease reactor power to
approximately 99 percent, in response to the discovery of a slight increase in steam flow
while feedwater flow remained constant. The inspectors also observed the licensee’s
troubleshooting activities and investigation to determine the cause of the increase in
steam flow from August 3 through August 12, 2004, when the cause was discovered
and reactor power returned to 100 percent. This observation constituted one inspection
sample.

Findings
No findings of significance were identified.

Freeze Seal Installation for Residual Heat Removal Pump Seal Cooler Replacement

Inspection Scope

On September 2, 2004, the inspectors observed operations department pre-job briefs
and contingency planning for the installation of a freeze seal on the ‘A’ Residual Heat
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Removal Pump seal cooler piping. The inspectors also observed portions of the freeze
seal application and communications with control room operators during the freeze seal
evolution. The installation of the freeze seal for maintenance activities was a first time
evolution for the licensee. This observation constituted one inspection procedure
sample.

Findings
No findings of significance wer